	Arrest, Search and Seizure - JUVENILES

	

	1.0 JUVENILE RIGHTS
FUNCTIONAL AREA: This section will cover juvenile rights guaranteed under the Constitution of the United States of America. This lesson will introduce the student to probable cause, detention and arrest. The student will be able to choose a proper course of action when presented with the fact situations to determine probable cause for detention or arrest. Furthermore, the student will be able to write an acceptable complaint for issuance of an arrest warrant. 

This section will introduce the student to probable cause, detention and arrest. The student will be able to choose a proper course of action when presented with the fact situations to determine probable cause for detention or arrest. Furthermore, the student will be able to write an acceptable complaint for issuance of an arrest warrant.

1.1 LEARNING OBJECTIVE: The student will be able to identify where the requirements for probable cause to arrest and search are contained.

As you know, the requirements for developing probable cause to arrest and for search and seizure are the same for juveniles as they are for adults and are contained in the:

1. Fourth Amendment, U.S. Constitution 

2. Article 1.06 of the Texas Code of Criminal Procedures 

3. Article 1, Section 9, of the Texas Constitution

1.2 LEARNING OBJECTIVE: The student will be able to define probable cause to arrest.
What is 'probable cause'. The following are the most universally accepted definitions:

1. Black's Law Dictionary: "An apparent state of facts found to exist upon reasonable inquiry, (that is, such inquiry as the given case renders convenient and proper) which would induce a reasonably intelligent and prudent man to believe, in a criminal case, that the accused person had committed the crime charged. 

2. Brown vs. State 481 S.W. 2d 106: "Probable cause for an arrest exists where, at that moment, the facts and circumstances within the knowledge of the arresting officer and of which he has reasonable trustworthy information would warrant a reasonable and prudent man in believing that a particular person has committed or is committing a crime." 

3. Henry vs. U.S. 361 U.S. 98: "Probable cause exists if the facts and circumstances know to the officer would warrant a prudent man in believing that the offense has been committed. 

4. Other cases: 

· Beck vs. Ohio 379 U.S. 89, 85 S. Ct. 223 

· McCray vs. Illinois 386 U.S. 300. 878 S. Ct. 1056

There are numerous explanations of Probable Cause. The following are just a few:

"The Court cryptically defined probable cause in the 1925 vehicle search case of Carroll vs. United States as occurring in a situation where facts and circumstances within [the officers'] knowledge, and of which they had reasonably trustworthy information, were sufficient in themselves to warrant a man of reasonable caution in the belief that intoxicating liquor was being transported in the automobile which they stopped and searched." You as a School-based law enforcement officer may encounter older children at your high schools bring alcoholic beverages onto your campuses. You need to know and understand how to articulate probable cause in such cases.

That same year, in Dumbra vs. United States, the court expanded its definition of probable cause, calling it a: reasonable ground of suspicion, supported by circumstances sufficiently strong in themselves to warrant a cautious man in the belief that the party is guilty of the offense with which he is charged. Stacey vs. Emery 97 U.S. 642, 645.

In determining what is probable cause, we are not called upon to determine whether the offense charged has in fact been committed. We are concerned only with whether the affiant had reasonable grounds at the time of the affidavit and the issuance of the warrant for the belief that the law was being violated on the premises to be searched, and if the apparent facts set out in the affidavit be such that there was a commission of the offense charged, there is probable cause justifying the issuance of the warrant.


In 1969 in Spinelli vs. United States the Court explicated: In holding as we have done, we do not retreat from the established propositions that only the probability, and not a prima facie showing, of criminal activity is the standard of probable cause, Beck vs. Ohio 379 U.S. 89, 96 (1964); that affidavits of probable cause are tested by much less rigorous standards than those governing the admissibility of evidence at trial, McCray vs. Illinois 386 U.S. 300, 311 (1967); that in judging probable cause issuing magistrates are not to be confined by niggardly limitations or by restrictions on the use of their common sense, United States vs. Ventresca 380, U.S. 102, 108 (1965); and that their determination of probable cause should be paid great deference by reviewing courts, Jones vs. United States 362 U.S. 257, 270-271 (1960)."_

1.3 LEARNING OBJECTIVE: The student will be able to identify valid indicators that serve as building blocks of probable cause.

When you, as a school-based law enforcement officer, are in a situation which requires an arrest, you will begin building blocks of probable cause for the arrest. One block or fact will be built upon the other. A peace officer builds one solid block or fact at a time.


Courts throughout the country have recognized the following guilt-laden facts as building blocks of probable cause.

Note: In the case of building probable cause, guilt-laden means that the act by itself is a strong indication of guilt.
1. Flight 

2. Furtive movements 

3. Hiding 

4. Attempt to destroy evidence 

5. Resistance to officers 

6. Admissions or confessions 

7. Evasive answers 

8. Unreasonable explanations 

9. Latent print identifications 

10. Hair follicle identifications 

11. Handwriting comparisons 

12. Fabric comparisons 

13. Identification of suspects by witnesses 

14. The emergency setting - crime zone 

15. The emergency setting - automobile 

16. Ballistics evidence 

17. Contraband or weapons in plain view 

18. Criminal record 

19. Hearsay information - informant 

20. Hearsay information - fellow officer 

21. Hearsay information - general 

22. Expert police opinion 

23. Police corroboration 

24. Unusual or suspicious conduct 

25. Fact of crime or felony 

26. Police computerized information (NCIC, etc.) 

27. Police radio broadcasts 

28. Use of drug-detecting dogs 

29. Voice print identifications 

30. Blood tests 

31. Electronically obtained evidence

1.4 LEARNING OBJECTIVE: The student will be able to define suspicion, identify examples of suspicious circumstances, and identify appropriate responses.

By the time most of us are teenagers, we have an understanding of what the word 'suspicion' means; or what constitutes circumstances which are 'suspicious'. The following definition of suspicion comes from the Black's Law Dictionary. "The act of suspecting, or the state of being suspected; imagination, generally of something ill; distrust; mistrust; doubt. The apprehension of something without proof or upon slight evidence. Suspicion implies a belief or opinion based upon facts or circumstances which do not amount to proof."

The definition in Webster's Dictionary is : "To imagine one guilty, or culpable on slight evidence without proof."

When you as a peace officer observe a person who is behaving suspiciously, or a suspicious circumstance, you will take several steps to insure that your taking the correct action.

1. Continued observation - Once you 'on-view' a suspicious person/activity, you certainly aren't going to turn your head and continue on patrol. You will maintain your observation of the person/activity. If you are in a vehicle,(and the person/activity is not mobile or is moving slowly), you may want to park your vehicle in a manner which is not obvious to the person/activity and observe. Or if you're on foot, you might want to take a position in which you would be out of sight of the person/activity. Note : Write the time, location, be sure and mark out with the dispatcher if necessary. Make a few brief notes as to 'what is happening', description of vehicles/person, call for cover if necessary. 

2. Computer checks - While you're watching and if there's a vehicle involved, check the day's ' hot car ' sheet or run the license plate for stolen/registration with your dispatcher. And, ask your dispatcher if your location shows to be 'hazardous or dangerous'.
Note: Hazardous or dangerous locations: If your department does not have a listing of hazardous or dangerous locations, you might suggest it to your supervisor. Hazardous/dangerous locations are those where peace officers have gotten into fights, or were threatened etc. It's where the officers had trouble of some sort. Any other responding officer needs to know if the persons at the location feel anger or animosity toward law enforcement officers.
3. Approach suspect and ask questions - At some point, after you have made mental and hopefully written notes about a person/activity, you will want to call for cover and upon arrival, approach the person/activity.
Note: It's better to call for cover and have two (or more) officers who are later disregarded; than not to call for cover and end up injured or dead.

4. When enough facts are developed temporary detention may be in order. 

5. Avoid commands.

The following court cases relate to suspicious activity. It would be beneficial for to research them:

· Cortez vs. U.S., 101 S. Ct. 690 (1981) 

· Moses vs. State, 464 S.W. 2d 116 

· Hernandez vs. State, 523 S.W. 2d 410 

Cases on suspicion:

· Florida vs. Royer, 103 S. Ct. 1319 (1983) 

· Eisenhauer vs. State, 678 S.W. 2d 947 (Tex. Cr. App. 1984) 

· Meeks vs. State, 653 S.W. 2d 6 (Tex. Cr. App. 1983) 

· Brown vs. Texas, 99 S. Ct. 2637 (1979) 

· Brown vs. State, 617 S.W. 2d 196 (Tex. Cr. App. 1981), reversed 103 S. Ct. 1535, on remand 657 S.W. 2d (Tex. Cr. App. 1983) 

1.5 LEARNING OBJECTIVE: The student will be to able define temporary detention and the elements required for lawful temporary detention.
TEMPORARY DETENTION
This section will deal with lawful temporary detention. 

Definitions:

Black's Law Dictionary: 'Temporary' is defined as, that which is to last for a limited time only, as distinguished from that which is indefinite, in its duration.

Black's Law Dictionary: 'Detention' is defined as, the act of keeping back or withholding, either accidentally or by design, a person or thing.

Consolidating these definitions, holding a person for a limited time, but who, as yet is not answerable to a criminal offense.

ELEMENTS REQUIRED FOR TEMPORARY DETENTION

Rational suspicion by a peace officer that some activity out of the ordinary is or has taken place.

Some indication is connect the person, to be detained, with the suspicious activity.

Some indication the suspicious activity is related to a specific offense.

TEMPORARY DETENTION CASES

1. Baity vs. State, 455 S.W. 2d 305, U.S. cert, denied 400 U.S. 918 

2. Armstrong vs. State, 550 S.W. 2d 25 

3. Johnson vs. State, 658 S.W. 2d 6123 (Tex. Cr. App. ) 

4. Terry vs. Ohio, 392 U.S. 1, 88 S. Ct. 1968
Note: Because of the gravity of the Terry decision, we need to stop and give you a background of Terry. We'll also include other cases which influence the 'stop and frisk' laws.

Background:

"The police long exercised the power to conduct 'field interrogation' or 'investigative detention'; later called 'stop and frisk'. Courts justified it variously as a common law police power or police conduct not proscribed by the Fourth Amendment if there was no formal or actual arrest. Such stops were justified under the theory that some criminal activity was probably afoot, and the police should be allowed to inquire. This was a form of preventive law enforcement, and it was necessary in effective police work.

But, at the time of Terry in the late 1960's, the nation was going through a period of civil unrest allegedly partly attributable to government's indiscriminate use of investigative detention and field interrogation supposedly directed at minorities and unpopular persons and causes. Also, some police officers and apparently sometimes used these forms of stop and frisk for 'harassment' rather than for legitimate preventive law enforcement. Controls were obviously needed.

These competing problems had to be reconciled under the Fourth Amendment.

The term before Terry, the Supreme Court decided Camara vs. Municipal Court and See vs. City of Seattle, the administrative search case.

The Court in Camara and See for the first time balanced the interests under the Fourth Amendment of effective regulatory enforcement and individual privacy to find that a lesser standard of probable cause than that required in criminal cases could be used by the administrative enforcement officers within the reasonableness requirement of the Fourth Amendment. There are serious practical problems in mechanical application of traditional Fourth Amendment protections to some areas of search and seizure law. The Court had to find a middle ground because of weighty competing interests.

TERRY, SIBRON AND PETERS

On the same day, the Supreme Court decided the original three stop and frisk cases: Terry vs. Ohio and (together) Sibron vs. New York and Peters vs. New York. These three formed the constitutional basis for all stop and frisk cases. 

Terry vs. Ohio involved a concealed weapon conviction which arose from a stop and frisk.

Terry and his partner were walking up and down a downtown Cleveland Street, passing by a jewelry store, stopping to look in, and moving on. Each separately did this twelve times. Their actions caught the eye of Officer McFaddin, a beat officer working plain-clothes looking for shoplifters. He suspected that they were 'casing' the store for a daylight robbery. After they met with a third man, Officer McFaddin felt compelled to act. He approached the three men, identified himself, and asked for their names. They were not responsive, so Officer McFaddin grabbed Terry and spun him around so Terry was between him and the other two men. He patted Terry down and found a gun in Terry's overcoat. Unable to remove it, he ordered the three into a store and to put their hands up against the wall. He removed the gun from Terry's coat and patted down the other two. Another gun was found on Terry's partner. Both were charged with carrying concealed weapons and convicted. The trial court found that Officer McFaddin lacked probable cause to arrest the two prior to the frisk, but, nevertheless, the search was lawful as a stop and frisk because of the defendants' suspicious conduct. The state court of appeals affirmed.

The Supreme Court also affirmed. The first question the court had to resolve was whether the stop of Terry was a seizure under the Fourth Amendment. Tied to that question in the Court's analysis was the effectiveness search under the guise of a stop and frisk. The Court held that a frisk is a search under the Fourth Amendment: "It is a serious intrusion upon the sanctity of the person, which may inflict great indignity and arouse strong resentment, and it is not to be undertaken lightly._"

5. Shaffer vs. State 562 S.W. 2d 853 

6. Petty vs. State 696 S.W. 2d 635 

7. Brown vs. Texas 443 U.S. 357, 99 S. Ct. 2637 

8. Howard vs. State 617 S.W. 2d 191 (Tex. Cr. App. 1979) 

9. Florida vs. Royer 

10. U.S. vs. Henley 469 U.S., 105 S. Ct., 36 Cr. L 3085 (1-8-85) 

11. Ramirez vs. State, 672 S.W. 2d 480 Tex. Cr. App. (1984) 

12. Pennsylvania vs. Mimms, 434 U.S. 106, 98 S. Ct. 330 

13. Michigan vs. Long, 463 U.S. 1032, 103 S. Ct. 3469 

14. Adams vs. Williams, 407 U.S. 143, 92 S. Ct. 1921 

15. McDougald vs. State, 547 S.W. 2d 40 

16. Ybarra vs. Illinois, 444 U.S. 85, 100 S. Ct. 338 

17. U.S. vs. Place, 462 U.S. 696, 103 S. Ct. 2637 

18. U.S. vs. Sharpe, 105 S. Ct. 1568 (1985) 

19. Eisenhower vs. State, 678 S.W. 2d 947 (Tex. Cr. App. 1984) 

20. Hayes vs. Florida, 105 S. Ct. 1643 (1984) 

21. Meeks vs. State, 653 S.W. 2d 6 (Tex. Cr. App. 1983) 

22. Schwartz vs. State, 635 S.W. 2d 545 (Tex. Cr. App. 1982)

1.6 LEARNING OBJECTIVE: The student will be able to identify circumstances when an officer has the authority to conduct a frisk.

CIRCUMSTANCES IN WHICH AN OFFICER HAS THE AUTHORITY TO CONDUCT A FRISK 

A frisk is a mere pat down of the outer clothing or container to which a detained person may have immediate access. A lawful frisk can only be initiated when the officer has first made a lawful stop. The sole justification for the frisk is the protection of the officers and others nearby. The following are some, but not all, of the reasons an officer would have to suspect the person stopped might possess a weapon:
1. Type of crime for which a person was stopped. 

2. Furtive movements. 

3. Appearance of person stopped (bulge, etc.) 

4. Time and place stopped. 

5. Proximity to recent crime scene. 

6. High-crime area. 

7. Reputation of subject. 

8. Officer's experience. 

9. Description of wanted vehicle or person.

The companion of a detainee should only be frisked when the officer has a reasonably suspicion the companion is in possession of an offensive weapon. The objective of the frisk is to locate weapons that could be used against the officer or others nearby. Normally, an officer cannot put his hands under the suspect's outer clothing until the officer feels something which he reasonably believes is a weapon. Any pat down must be justified by specific articulable facts. Any deviation from the normal pat down must be related in scope to those facts justifying the deviation.

Packages, purses, briefcases and other containers should not be searched, but can be separated from the suspect and frisked during the stop. Any deviation must be justified by articulable facts.

The officer may seize any evidence he observes under the plain view doctrine. (Plain view will be addressed in lesson two.)

Officers can conduct a frisk limited to those areas in which a weapon may be placed or hidden, if the officer possesses a reasonable belief based on 'specific' and articulable facts which taken together with the rational inferences from those facts, that the suspect is dangerous and may gain immediate control of weapons.

Frisk Cases:

1. Terry vs. Ohio, 392 U.S. 1, 88 S. Ct. 1868 

2. U.S. vs. Sink, 586 F. 2d 1041 (5th Cir. 1978), cert. denied, 443 U.S. 912 

3. U.S. vs. Ullrich, 580 F. 2d 765 (5th Cir. 1978) 

4. Michigan vs. Long, 463 U.S. 1032, 103 S. Ct. (1983) 

5. U.S. vs. Tharpe, 536 F. 2d 1098 (5th Cir. 1976)

1.7 LEARNING OBJECTIVE: The student will be able to define an arrest and list elements necessary to constitute a lawful arrest.
Lawful Arrests

An arrest is the apprehending or restraining of an individual in order to bring the person before the proper legal authority to answer for an alleged crime.

Elements of a lawful arrest:
1. Authority - Arresting person must possess the authority to make an arrest. 

2. Intent - There must be an intent on the part of the arresting person to take the subject into custody for the purpose of bringing him before a court. 

3. Seizure of the person - There must be a seizure or taking possession of the person. 

4. Understanding - The person being arrested must understand that he is being attested.

The mere denial of intent by the officer will usually be insufficient to negate the existence of an arrest in court.

See Article 11.21, 11.22 and 15.22 Code of Criminal Procedure which are defined in this lesson.

The following Arrest cases should give you more insight into the arrest process.

· U.S. vs. Maldonado, 735 F. 2d 809 

· Eisenhower vs. State, 678 S.W. 2d 947 (Tex. Cr. App. 1984) 

1.8 LEARNING OBJECTIVE: The student will be able to define when a person is under arrest, in constructive custody, and under restraint.
ARREST - IN CONSTRUCTIVE CUSTODY - UNDER RESTRAINT 

Article 15.22 CCP - When a person is arrested: A person is arrested when he has been actually placed under restraint or taken into custody by an officer or person executing a warrant of arrest, or by an officer or person arresting without a warrant.
Article 11.21 CCP - Constructive Custody: The words 'confined', 'imprisoned', 'in custody', 'confined', 'imprisonment', refer not only to the actual, corporeal and forcible detention of a person, but likewise to any coercive measures by threats, menaces or the fear of injury, whereby one person exercises a control over the person of another, and detains him within certain limits.
Article 11.22 CCP - By 'restraint' is meant the kind of control which one person exercises over another, not to confine him within certain limits, but to subject him to the general authority and power of the person claiming such right.

Courts will probably construe constructive custody as an arrest.

Custody cases:

· Berkemer vs. McCarty, 104 S. Ct. 697 (1984) 

· Eisenhower vs. State, 678 S.W. 2d 947 (Tex. Cr. App. 1984) 

PROBABLE CAUSE 

"The Fourth Amendment provides in the warrant clause that 'no warrants shall issue, but upon probable cause.' Probable cause is the threshold requirement for police intrusions on citizen privacy except in limited circumstances."

"The probable cause requirement is basic to the central concern of the Fourth Amendment that citizens be protected from arbitrary and oppressive interference and intrusions by the police. Indeed, one of the purposes of the Fourth Amendment was to guarantee that necessary police intrusions were justified by reason and not on mere suspicion or whim. The probable cause of the officer on the street. Probable cause cannot be determined by the result of the search.

Closely related to the probable cause requirement is the requirement that a 'neutral and detached' magistrate review the facts and circumstances articulated by the officer to determine probable cause before a search takes place except in limited circumstances. The citizen is entitled to independent preliminary review of the police decision to conduct a search except where some exigent circumstances compel immediate action. The Fourth Amendment's 'protection' consists in requiring that those inference be drawn by a neutral and detached magistrate instead of being judged by the officer engaged in the often competitive enterprise of ferreting out crime."

1.9 LEARNING OBJECTIVE: The student will recognize that once an arrest, search or stop has been made, the information being gathered to establish probable cause or the articulable suspicion to justify the officer's initial action cannot be added to.

As a peace officer you must be aware that once an arrest, search or stop has been made, the information being gathered to establish probable cause or the articulable suspicion to justify the officer's initial action cannot be added to.

A. Once an arrest power has been invoked, i.e., force, search, seizure or restraint the justification or probable cause must have been present before the power is invoked.
B. At the moment of arrest, probable cause ceases to build. Any after-the -arrest, guilt-laden facts that develop will not be considered by the courts as part of the facts necessary to justify the arrest. They can be used as evidence of guilt if probable cause is upheld.


1.10 LEARNING OBJECTIVE: The student will be able to identify the amount of information necessary to make an arrest based upon information communicated from another officer.

In certain situations, you as a peace officer are allowed under law to make an arrest based upon information communicated from another officer.

The test of probable cause where an officer requests that another officer arrest a person is based upon information known to the requesting officer. If the requesting officer possesses sufficient knowledge to constitute probable cause for an arrest without warrant, he does not need to detail such information to the arresting officer but only such information as is necessary for the arresting officer to know who is wanted. (Example: Fleeing armed robbery)

The following are causes pertaining to the previous situation: 

· Green vs. State, 470 S.W. 2d 901 

· Weeks vs. State, 417 S.W. 2d 716 U.S. cert. denied 389 U.S. 996 (1996) 

· McDuff vs. State, 431 S.W. 2d 547 

· Piper vs. State, 484 S.W. 2d 776 

· Williams vs. State, 621 S.W. 2d 609 (Tex. Cr. App. 1981) 

· Volanty vs. State, CCApp. 663 S.W. 2d 897 (Tex. App. 13 Dist. 1983) U.S. cert. denied 105 S. Ct. 790 

· Woodward vs. State, 668 S.W. 2d 337 (Tex. Cr. App. 1982) U.S. cert. denied 105 S. Ct. 939 

· Whiteley vs. Warden, 401 U.S. 560, 91 S. Ct. 1031 

1.11 LEARNING OBJECTIVE: The student will recognize that obtaining an arrest warrant is the best course of action except when an emergency exists.

ARREST WARRANTS
An arrest warrant is the best course of action except when an emergency exists.

An arrest warrant provides an impartial judicial determination that probable cause exists for an arrest.

By requiring probable cause under oath, it provides protection to the citizen and the officer from the consequences of mistakes (Article 15.03, 15.04, 15.05).

Article 15.03 - Magistrate May Issue Warrant or Summons

1. A magistrate may issue a warrant of arrest or a summons: 

1. In any case in which he is by law authorized to order verbally the arrest of an offender. 

2. When any person shall make an oath before the magistrate that another has committed some offense against the laws of the laws; and 

3. In any case named in this Code where he is specially authorized to issue warrants of arrest. 

2. A summons may be issued in any case where a warrant may be issued, and shall summon the defendant to appear before a magistrate at a stated time and place. The summons shall be served upon a defendant by delivering a copy to him personally, or by leaving it at his dwelling house or usual place of abode with some person of suitable age and discretion then residing therein or by mailing it to the defendant's last known address. If a defendant fails to appear in response to the summons a warrant shall be issued.

Article 15.04 - Complaint The affidavit made before the magistrate or district or county attorney is called a 'complaint' if it charges the commission of an offense.

Article 15.05 - Requisites of Complaint The complaint shall be sufficient, without regard to form, if it has these substantial requisites:

1. It must state the name of the accused, if known, and if not known, must give some reasonably definite description of him. 

2. It must show that the accused has committed some offense against the laws of the State, either directly or that the affiant has good reason to believe, and does believe, that the accused has committed such offense. 

3. It must state the time and place of the commission of the offense, as definitely as can be done by the affiant. 

4. It must be signed by the affiant by writing his name or affixing his mark.

(See Malley vs. Briggs, 38 Cr. L. 3169 (3-5-86) 

All law enforcement officers are taught in the police academy that there are three types of officer/citizen encounters. The first type is a consensual encounter. Consensual encounters do not require reasonable suspicion or probable cause as long as a reasonable person would feel free to leave or decline to speak with the police. i The second type of encounter is the investigatory detention which is commonly known as a Terry stop. Investigatory detentions enable the police to briefly detain a person for further investigation where the officer has reasonable suspicion to believe the person stopped is involved in criminal activity. ii The third type of officer/citizen encounter is an arrest which must be supported by probable cause.

The validity of the arrest does not depend on whether the suspect actually committed the crime; the mere fact that the suspect is later acquitted of the offense for which he is arrested is irrelevant to the validity of the arrest. 

Therefore, as long as probable cause is present, an arrest is valid. Thus, when the officers, during the course of the consensual encounter based upon a dispatch of a fight, found the vehicle described in the dispatch and observed ammunition in vehicle with a convicted felon, the officers met the threshold of probable cause. When combined with the suspects flight and the traffic offenses he committed, the court held that the ultimate arrest that led to the discovery of the pistol was lawful. It is also important to note that, although the officers, had probable cause to arrest when viewing the ammunition, the arrest did not actually occur until Douglass submitted to the officers show of authority. 

In conclusion, when conducting consensual encounters, officers should attempt to abide by the following:

Do not block the citizens path, either with your person or police vehicle; 
Speak in normal tone of voice rather than giving authoritative commands; 
Request, rather than demand, to speak with the citizen; 
Avoid pointing guns at the citizen (unless necessary to protect yourself, in which case the encounter will probably not be deemed consensual from the point the weapon is drawn); and Avoid intimidating movements or gestures. 
In considering the factors above, remember that the key question the courts will ask is whether the words or conduct used by the police officer would lead a reasonably objective person to believe they were not free to leave, refuse the officer, or otherwise terminate the encounter. x

Citations:
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2006 U.S. App. LEXIS 27400 (7th Cir. 2006) 
Id. at 9. 
United States v. Drayton, 536 U.S. 194, 200 (2002) 
18 U.S.C. 921(a)(20); 720 Ill. Comp. Stat. 5/24-1.1(a) 
Michigan v. DeFillippo, 443 U.S. 31, 36 (1979) 
United States v. Osborn, 120 F.3d 59, 62-63 (7th Cir. 1997) 
see California v. Hodari D., 499 U.S. 621, 628-629 (1991) 
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SBLE: End of Part I


	2.0 JUVENILE JUSTICE PROCEDURES
FUNCTIONAL AREA: This section will cover juvenile justice procedures. The student will be able to demonstrate on a written examination an understanding of this area to a specified percentage. 
2.1 LEARNING OBJECTIVE: The student will be able to identify the kinds of juvenile offenses and how to deal with offenders.
Status Offense
"Status offender" means a child who is accused, adjudicated, or convicted for conduct that would not, under state law, be a crime if committed by an adult, including:
· truancy under Section 51.03(b)(2); 

· running away from home under Section 51.03(b)(3); 

· a fineable only offense under Section 51.03(b)(1) transferred to the juvenile court under Section 51.08(b), but only if the conduct constituting the offense would not have been criminal if engaged in by an adult; failure to attend school under Section 25.094, Education Code;

· a violation of standards of student conduct as described by Section 51.03(b)(5); 

· a violation of a juvenile curfew ordinance or order;. 

· a violation of a provision of the Alcoholic Beverage Code applicable to minors only; or 

· a violation of any other fineable only offense under Section 8.07(a)(4) or (5), Penal Code, but only if the conduct constituting the offense would not have been criminal if engaged in by an adult.

2.2 LEARNING OBJECTIVE: The student will be able to Define delinquent conduct and conduct in need of supervision
Delinquent conduct; conduct indicating a need for supervision FC 51.03
a. Delinquent conduct is: 

1. conduct, other than a traffic offense, that violates a penal law of this state or of the United States punishable by imprisonment or by confinement in jail; 

2. conduct that violates a lawful order of a court under circumstances that would constitute contempt of that court in: 

A. a justice or municipal court; or 

B. a county court for conduct punishable only by a fine;

3. conduct that violates Section 49.04, 49.05, 49.06, 49.07, or 49.08, Penal Code; or 

4. conduct that violates Section 106.041, Alcoholic Beverage Code, relating to driving under the influence of alcohol by a minor (third or subsequent offense).

b. Conduct indicating a need for supervision is: 

1. subject to Subsection (f), conduct, other than a traffic offense, that violates: 

A. the penal laws of this state of the grade of misdemeanor that are punishable by fine only; or 

B. the penal ordinances of any political subdivision of this state;

2. the absence of a child on 10 or more days or parts of days within a six month period in the same school year or on three or more days or parts of days within a four week period from school; 

3. the voluntary absence of a child from the child's home without the consent of the child's parent or guardian for a substantial length of time or without intent to return; 

4. conduct prohibited by city ordinance or by state law involving the inhalation of the fumes or vapors of paint and other protective coatings or glue and other adhesives and the volatile chemicals itemized in Section 484.002, Health and Safety Code; 

5. an act that violates a school district's previously communicated written standards of student conduct for which the child has been expelled under Section 37.007(c), Education Code; or 

6. conduct that violates a reasonable and lawful order of a court entered under Section 264.305.

c. Nothing in this title prevents criminal proceedings against a child for perjury. 

d. It is an affirmative defense to an allegation of conduct under Subsection (b)(2) that one or more of the absences required to be proven under that subsection have been excused by a school official or by the court or that one or more of the absences were involuntary, but only if there is an insufficient number of unexcused or voluntary absences remaining to constitute conduct under Subsection (b)(2). The burden is on the respondent to show by a preponderance of the evidence that the absence has been or should be excused or that the absence was involuntary. A decision by the court to excuse an absence for purposes of this subsection does not affect the ability of the school district to determine whether to excuse the absence for another purpose. 

e. For the purposes of Subsection (b)(3), "child" does not include a person who is married, divorced, or widowed. 

f. Except as provided by Subsection (g), conduct described under Subsection (b)(1), other than conduct that violates Section 49.02, Penal Code, prohibiting public intoxication, does not constitute conduct indicating a need for supervision unless the child has been referred to the juvenile court under Section 51.08(b). 

g. In a county with a population of less than 100,000, conduct described by Subsection (b)(1)(A) that violates Section 25.094, Education Code, is conduct indicating a need for supervision.

Also see PC 49.04, 49.05, 49.06, 49.07, 49.08 and ABC 106.04.
2.3 LEARNING OBJECTIVE: The student will be able to follow correct procedures when detaining a juvenile suspected of criminal activity (location and conditions) follow correct procedures and know limits regarding treatment of juvenile offenders. 
Penal Code 49.04 - Procedures and limits for treatment of offenders 

Place and conditions of detention Family Code 51.12
h. Except as provided by Subsection (h), a child may be detained only in a: 

1. juvenile processing office in compliance with Section 52.025; 

2. place of non-secure custody in compliance with Article 45.058, Code of Criminal Procedure; 

3. certified juvenile detention facility that complies with the requirements of Subsection (f); 

4. secure detention facility as provided by Subsection (j); or 

5. county jail or other facility as provided by Subsection (l).

i. The proper authorities in each county shall provide a suitable place of detention for children who are parties to proceedings under this title, but the juvenile board shall control the conditions and terms of detention and detention supervision and shall permit visitation with the child at all reasonable times. 

j. In each county, each judge of the juvenile court and a majority of the members of the juvenile board shall personally inspect the juvenile pre-adjudication secure detention facilities and any public or private juvenile secure correctional facilities used for post-adjudication confinement that are located in the county and operated under authority of the juvenile board at least annually and shall certify in writing to the authorities responsible for operating and giving financial support to the facilities and to the Texas Juvenile Probation Commission that they are suitable or unsuitable for the detention of children in accordance with: 

1. the requirements of Subsections (a), (f), and (g); and 

2. minimum professional standards for the detention of children in pre-adjudication or post-adjudication secure confinement promulgated by the Texas Juvenile Probation Commission or, at the election of the juvenile board, the current standards promulgated by the American Correctional Association.

k. Except as provided by Subsections (j) and (l), a child may not be placed in a facility that has not been certified under Subsection (c) as suitable for the detention of children and registered under Subsection (i). Except as provided by Subsections (j) and (l), a child detained in a facility that has not been certified under Subsection (c) as suitable for the detention of children or that has not been registered under Subsection (i) shall be entitled to immediate release from custody in that facility. 

l. If there is no certified place of detention in the county in which the petition is filed, the designated place of detention may be in another county. 

m. A child detained in a building that contains a jail, lockup, or other place of secure confinement, including an alcohol or other drug treatment facility, shall be separated by sight and sound from adults detained in the same building. Children and adults are separated by sight and sound only if they are unable to see each other and conversation between them is not possible. The separation must extend to all areas of the facility, including sally ports and passageways, and those areas used for admission, counseling, sleeping, toileting, showering, dining, recreational, educational, or vocational activities, and health care. The separation may be accomplished through architectural design. 

n. Except for a child detained in a juvenile processing office, a place of non-secure custody, a secure detention facility as provided by Subsection (j), or a facility as provided by Subsection (l), a child detained in a building that contains a jail or lockup may not have any contact with: 

1. part-time or fulltime security staff, including management, who have contact with adults detained in the same building; or 

2. direct care staff who have contact with adults detained in the same building.

o. This section does not apply to a person: 

1. after transfer to criminal court for prosecution under Section 54.02; or 

2. who is at least 17 years of age and who has been taken into custody after having: 

A. escaped from a juvenile facility operated by or under contract with the Texas Youth Commission; or 

B. violated a condition of release under supervision of the Texas Youth Commission.

p. Except for a facility operated or certified by the Texas Youth Commission or a facility as provided by Subsection (l), a governmental unit or private entity that operates or contracts for the operation of a juvenile pre-adjudication secure detention facility or a juvenile post-adjudication secure correctional facility in this state shall: 

1. register the facility annually with the Texas Juvenile Probation Commission; and 

2. adhere to all applicable minimum standards for the facility.

q. After being taken into custody, a child may be detained in a secure detention facility until the child is released under Section 53.01, 53.012, or 53.02 or until a detention hearing is held under Section 54.01(a), regardless of whether the facility has been certified under Subsection (c), if: 

1. a certified juvenile detention facility is not available in the county in which the child is taken into custody; 

2. the detention facility complies with: 

A. the short-term detention standards adopted by the Texas Juvenile Probation Commission; and 

B. the requirements of Subsection (f); and

3. the detention facility has been designated by the county juvenile board for the county in which the facility is located.

r. If a child who is detained under Subsection (j) or (l) is not released from detention at the conclusion of the detention hearing for a reason stated in Section 54.01(e), the child may be detained after the hearing only in a certified juvenile detention facility. 

s. A child who is taken into custody and required to be detained under Section 53.02(f) may be detained in a county jail or other facility until the child is released under Section 53.02(f) or until a detention hearing is held as required by Section 54.01(p), regardless of whether the facility complies with the requirements of this section, if: 

1. a certified juvenile detention facility or a secure detention facility described by Subsection (j) is not available in the county in which the child is taken into custody or in an adjacent county; 

2. the facility has been designated by the county juvenile board for the county in which the facility is located; 

3. the child is separated by sight and sound from adults detained in the same facility through architectural design or time phasing; 

4. the child does not have any contact with management or direct care staff that has contact with adults detained in the same facility on the same work shift; 

5. the county in which the child is taken into custody is not located in a metropolitan statistical area as designated by the United States Bureau of the Census; and 

6. each judge of the juvenile court and a majority of the members of the juvenile board of the county in which the child is taken into custody have personally inspected the facility at least annually and have certified in writing to the Texas Juvenile Probation Commission that the facility complies with the requirements of Subdivisions (3) and (4).

Designation of juvenile processing office FC 52.025
t. The juvenile board may designate an office or a room, which may be located in a police facility or sheriff's offices, as the juvenile processing office for the temporary detention of a child taken into custody under Section 52.01. The office may not be a cell or holding facility used for detentions other than detentions under this section. The juvenile board by written order may prescribe the conditions of the designation and limit the activities that may occur in the office during the temporary detention. 

u. A child may be detained in a juvenile processing office only for: 

1. the return of the child to the custody of a person under Section 52.02(a)(1); 

2. the completion of essential forms and records required by the juvenile court or this title; 

3. the photographing and fingerprinting of the child if otherwise authorized at the time of temporary detention by this title; 

4. the issuance of warnings to the child as required or permitted by this title; or 

5. the receipt of a statement by the child under Section 51.095(a)(1), (2), (3), or (5).

v. A child may not be left unattended in a juvenile processing office and is entitled to be accompanied by the child's parent, guardian, or other custodian or by the child's attorney. 

w. A child may not be detained in a juvenile processing office for longer than six hours.
ASSIGNMENT for Student READ Texas Family Code, Title 3, Chapters 51-60

Statutes available at: http://www.capitol.state.tx.us/statutes/statutes.html 

. General provisions 

a. Proceedings before and including juvenile court referral 

b. Proceedings prior to judicial proceedings 

c. Judicial proceedings 

d. Children with mental illness or mental retardation

e. Appeal 

f. Victims' rights 

g. Records 

h. Progressive sanction guidelines 

i. Uniform interstate compact on juveniles

2.4 LEARNING OBJECTIVE: The student will be able to identify the issues in making law enforcement contacts at a school.
A. Contact with school personnel Art. 15.27. Notification to Schools Required 

(a) A law enforcement agency that arrests any person or refers a child to the office or official designated by the juvenile board who the agency believes is enrolled as a student in a public primary or secondary school, for an offense listed in Subsection (h), shall attempt to ascertain whether the person is so enrolled. If the law enforcement agency ascertains that the individual is enrolled as a student in a public primary or secondary school, the agency shall orally notify the superintendent or a person designated by the superintendent in the school district in which the student is enrolled of that arrest or referral within 24 hours after the arrest or referral is made, or on the next school day. If the law enforcement agency cannot ascertain whether the individual is enrolled as a student, the agency shall orally notify the superintendent or a person designated by the superintendent in the school district in which the student is believed to be enrolled of that arrest or detention within 24 hours after the arrest or detention, or on the next school day. If the individual is a student, the superintendent shall promptly notify all instructional and support personnel who have responsibility for supervision of the student. All personnel shall keep the information received in this subsection confidential. The State Board for Educator Certification may revoke or suspend the certification of personnel who intentionally violate this subsection. Within seven days after the date the oral notice is given, the law enforcement agency shall mail written notification, marked "PERSONAL and CONFIDENTIAL" on the mailing envelope, to the superintendent or the person designated by the superintendent. Both the oral and written notice shall contain sufficient details of the arrest or referral and the acts allegedly committed by the student to enable the superintendent or the superintendent's designee to determine whether there is a reasonable belief that the student has engaged in conduct defined as a felony offense by the Penal Code. The information contained in the notice may be considered by the superintendent or the superintendent's designee in making such a determination.

B. Contact with juvenile offenders in a school setting A law enforcement agency that arrests, or refers to a juvenile court under Chapter 52, Family Code, an individual who the law enforcement agency knows or believes is enrolled as a student in a private primary or secondary school shall make the oral and written notifications described by Subsection (a) to the principal or a school employee designated by the principal of the school in which the student is enrolled. 
2.5 LEARNING OBJECTIVE: The student will be able to identify the issues in identifying and making law enforcement contacts with juveniles engaged in organized crime activity (gang activity), Identifying and contact with Gang members and Statewide reporting of juvenile gang information. (ASSIGNMENT for Student READ Chapter 71, Penal Code, and Chapter 61, Code of Criminal Procedure.) Statutes available at: http://www.capitol.state.tx.us/statutes/statutes.html 

CODE OF CRIMINAL PROCEDURE

CHAPTER 61. COMPILATION OF INFORMATION PERTAINING TO CRIMINAL COMBINATIONS AND CRIMINAL STREET GANGS

Art. 61.01. DEFINITIONS. In this chapter: 
(1) "Combination" and "criminal street gang" have the 
meanings assigned by Section 71.01, Penal Code.
(2) "Child" has the meaning assigned by Section 51.02, 
Family Code. 
(3) "Criminal information" means facts, material, 
photograph, or data reasonably related to the investigation or 
prosecution of criminal activity.
(4) "Criminal activity" means conduct that is subject to 
prosecution. 
(5) "Criminal justice agency" has the meaning assigned by 
Article 60.01 and also means a municipal or county agency, or school 
district law enforcement agency, that is engaged in the 
administration of criminal justice under a statute or executive 
order.
(6) "Administration of criminal justice" has the meaning 
assigned by Article 60.01.
(7) "Department" means the Department of Public Safety of 
the State of Texas.
(8) "Intelligence database" means a collection or 
compilation of data organized for search and retrieval to evaluate, 
analyze, disseminate, or use intelligence information relating to a 
criminal combination or a criminal street gang for the purpose of 
investigating or prosecuting criminal offenses.
(9) "Law enforcement agency" does not include the Texas 
Department of Criminal Justice or the Texas Youth Commission.

Added by Acts 1995, 74th Leg., ch. 671, Sec. 1, eff. Aug. 28, 1995. 
Subd. (1) amended by and Subds. (7), (8), (9) added by Acts 1999, 
76th Leg., ch. 1154, Sec. 2, eff. Sept. 1, 1999.

Art. 61.02. CRIMINAL COMBINATION AND CRIMINAL STREET GANG INTELLIGENCE DATABASE; SUBMISSION CRITERIA.
 (a) Subject to Subsection (b), a criminal justice agency may compile criminal information into an intelligence database for the purpose of 
investigating or prosecuting the criminal activities of criminal 
combinations or criminal street gangs. The information may be 
compiled on paper, by computer, or in any other useful manner.
(b) A law enforcement agency may compile and maintain 
criminal information relating to a criminal street gang as provided 
by Subsection (a) in a local or regional intelligence database only 
if the agency compiles and maintains the information in accordance 
with the criminal intelligence systems operating policies 
established under 28 C.F.R. Section 23.1 et seq. and the submission 
criteria established under Subsection (c).
(c) Criminal information collected under this chapter 
relating to a criminal street gang must:
(1) be relevant to the identification of an organization 
that is reasonably suspected of involvement in criminal activity; 
and
(2) consist of any two of the following: 
(A) a self-admission by the individual of criminal street 
gang membership; 
(B) an identification of the individual as a criminal street 
gang member by a reliable informant or other individual;
(C) a corroborated identification of the individual as a 
criminal street gang member by an informant or other individual of 
unknown reliability;
(D) evidence that the individual frequents a documented 
area of a criminal street gang, associates with known criminal 
street gang members, and uses criminal street gang dress, hand 
signals, tattoos, or symbols; or
(E) evidence that the individual has been arrested or taken 
into custody with known criminal street gang members for an offense 
or conduct consistent with criminal street gang activity.

Added by Acts 1995, 74th Leg., ch. 671, Sec. 1, eff. Aug. 28, 1995. 
Amended by Acts 1999, 76th Leg., ch. 1154, Sec. 3, eff. Sept. 1, 
1999.

2.6 LEARNING OBJECTIVE: The student will be able to identify the issues in identifying and making law enforcement decision on release of information pertaining to juveniles in accordance with Article 61.03 Code of Criminal Procedure (CCP).

Art. 61.03. RELEASE OF INFORMATION. (a) A criminal justice 
agency that maintains criminal information under this chapter may 
release the information on request to:
(1) another criminal justice agency; 
(2) a court; or 
(3) a defendant in a criminal proceeding who is entitled to 
the discovery of the information under Chapter 39.
(b) A criminal justice agency or court may use information 
received under this article only for the administration of criminal 
justice. A defendant may use information received under this 
article only for a defense in a criminal proceeding.
(c) If a local law enforcement agency compiles and maintains 
information under this chapter relating to a criminal street gang, 
the agency shall send the information to the department.
(d) The department shall establish an intelligence database 
and shall maintain information received from an agency under 
Subsection (c) in the database in accordance with the policies 
established under 28 C.F.R. Section 23.1 et seq. and the submission 
criteria under Article 61.02(c).
(e) The department shall designate a code to distinguish 
criminal information contained in the intelligence database 
relating to a child from criminal information contained in the 
database relating to an adult offender.

Added by Acts 1995, 74th Leg., ch. 671, Sec. 1, eff. Aug. 28, 1995. 
Subsec. (d) added by Acts 1997, 75th Leg., ch. 898, Sec. 1, eff. 
Sept. 1, 1997; Subsecs. (c), (d) amended by and Subsec. (e) added 
by Acts 1999, 76th Leg., ch. 1154, Sec. 4, eff. Sept. 1, 1999.

Art. 61.04. CRIMINAL INFORMATION RELATING TO CHILD.
(a) Notwithstanding Chapter 58, Family Code, criminal information relating to a child associated with a combination or a criminal street gang may be compiled and released under this chapter 
regardless of the age of the child.
(b) A criminal justice agency that maintains information 
under this chapter may release the information to an attorney 
representing a child who is a party to a proceeding under Title 3, 
Family Code, if the juvenile court determines the information:
(1) is material to the proceeding; and 
(2) is not privileged under law. 
(c) An attorney may use information received under this 
article only for a child's defense in a proceeding under Title 3, 
Family Code.
(d) If a local law enforcement agency collects criminal 
information under this chapter relating to a criminal street gang, 
the governing body of the county or municipality served by the law 
enforcement agency may adopt a policy to notify the parent or 
guardian of a child of the agency's observations relating to the 
child's association with a criminal street gang.

Added by Acts 1995, 74th Leg., ch. 671, Sec. 1, eff. Aug. 28, 1995. 
Subsec. (a) amended by Acts 1997, 75th Leg., ch. 165, Sec. 7.05, 
eff. Sept. 1, 1997; amended by Acts 1997, 75th Leg., ch. 898, Sec. 
2, eff. Sept. 1, 1997; Subsec. (a) amended by and Subsec. (d) added 
by Acts 1999, 76th Leg., ch. 1154, Sec. 5, eff. Sept. 1, 1999.

2.7 LEARNING OBJECTIVE: The student will be able to identify what constitutes the unauthorized use or release of criminal information pertaining to a juvenile in accordance with Article 61.05 Code of Criminal Procedure (CCP).

Art. 61.05. UNAUTHORIZED USE OR RELEASE OF CRIMINAL 
INFORMATION. (a) A person commits an offense if the person 
knowingly:
(1) uses criminal information obtained under this chapter 
for an unauthorized purpose; or
(2) releases the information to a person who is not entitled 
to the information.
(b) An offense under this article is a Class A misdemeanor. 

Added by Acts 1995, 74th Leg., ch. 671, Sec. 1, eff. Aug. 28, 1995. 

2.8 LEARNING OBJECTIVE: The student will be able to identify the legal requirements for removal of criminal records relating to an individual other than a child in accordance with Article 61.06 Code of Criminal Procedure (CCP).

Art. 61.06. REMOVAL OF RECORDS RELATING TO AN INDIVIDUAL OTHER THAN A CHILD. (a) This article does not apply to information 
collected under this chapter by the Texas Department of Criminal 
Justice or the Texas Youth Commission.
(b) Subject to Subsection (c), information collected under 
this chapter relating to a criminal street gang must be removed from 
an intelligence database established under Article 61.02 and the 
intelligence database maintained by the department under Article 
61.03 after three years if:
(1) the information relates to the investigation or 
prosecution of criminal activity engaged in by an individual other 
than a child; and
(2) the individual who is the subject of the information has 
not been arrested for criminal activity reported to the department 
under Chapter 60.
(c) In determining whether information is required to be 
removed from an intelligence database under Subsection (b), the 
three-year period does not include any period during which the 
individual who is the subject of the information is confined in the 
institutional division or the state jail division of the Texas 
Department of Criminal Justice.

Added by Acts 1995, 74th Leg., ch. 671, Sec. 1, eff. Aug. 28, 1995. 
Amended by Acts 1997, 75th Leg., ch. 898, Sec. 3, eff. Sept. 1, 
1997; Acts 1999, 76th Leg., ch. 1154, Sec. 6, eff. Sept. 1, 1999.

2.9 LEARNING OBJECTIVE: The student will be able to identify the legal requirements for removal of criminal records relating to a juvenile offender in accordance with Article 61.07 Code of Criminal Procedure (CCP).

Art. 61.07. REMOVAL OF RECORDS RELATING TO A CHILD. (a) This article does not apply to information collected under this chapter by the Texas Department of Criminal Justice or the Texas Youth Commission.
(b) Subject to Subsection (c), information collected under 
this chapter relating to a criminal street gang must be removed from 
an intelligence database established under Article 61.02 and the 
intelligence database maintained by the department under Article 
61.03 after two years if:
(1) the information relates to the investigation or 
prosecution of criminal activity engaged in by a child; and
(2) the child who is the subject of the information has not 
been: 
(A) arrested for criminal activity reported to the 
department under Chapter 60; or
(B) taken into custody for delinquent conduct reported to 
the department under Chapter 58, Family Code.
(c) In determining whether information is required to be 
removed from an intelligence database under Subsection (b), the 
two-year period does not include any period during which the child 
who is the subject of the information is:
(1) committed to the Texas Youth Commission for conduct that 
violates a penal law of the grade of felony; or
(2) confined in the institutional division or the state jail 
division of the Texas Department of Criminal Justice.

Added by Acts 1999, 76th Leg., ch. 1154, Sec. 7, eff. Sept. 1, 1999. 

2.10 LEARNING OBJECTIVE: The student will be able to identify the legal requirements for releasing criminal information on a juvenile upon a written request in accordance with Article 61.08 Code of Criminal Procedure (CCP).

Art. 61.08. RIGHT TO REQUEST REVIEW OF CRIMINAL 
INFORMATION. (a) On receipt of a written request of a person or the parent or guardian of a child that includes a showing by the person 
or the parent or guardian that a law enforcement agency may have 
collected criminal information under this chapter relating to the 
person or child that is inaccurate or that does not comply with the 
submission criteria under Article 61.02(c), the head of the agency 
or the designee of the agency head shall review criminal 
information collected by the agency under this chapter relating to 
the person or child to determine if:
(1) reasonable suspicion exists to believe that the 
information is accurate; and
(2) the information complies with the submission criteria 
established under Article 61.02(c).
(b) If, after conducting a review of criminal information 
under Subsection (a), the agency head or designee determines that:
(1) reasonable suspicion does not exist to believe that the 
information is accurate or the information does not comply with the 
submission criteria, the agency shall:
(A) destroy all records containing the information; and 
(B) notify the department and the person who requested the 
review of the agency's determination and the destruction of the 
records; or
(2) reasonable suspicion does exist to believe that the 
information is accurate and the information complies with the 
submission criteria, the agency shall notify the person who 
requested the review of the agency's determination and that the 
person is entitled to seek judicial review of the agency's 
determination under Article 61.09.
(c) On receipt of notice under Subsection (b), the 
department shall immediately destroy all records containing the 
information that is the subject of the notice in the intelligence 
database maintained by the department under Article 61.03.
(d) A person who is committed to the Texas Youth Commission 
or confined in the institutional division or the state jail 
division of the Texas Department of Criminal Justice does not while 
committed or confined have the right to request review of criminal 
information under this article.

Added by Acts 1999, 76th Leg., ch. 1154, Sec. 7, eff. Sept. 1, 1999. 

2.11 LEARNING OBJECTIVE: The student will be able to identify the legal requirements for judicial review of criminal records relating to a juvenile offender in accordance with Article 61.09 Code of Criminal Procedure (CCP).

Art. 61.09. JUDICIAL REVIEW. (a) A person who is entitled to 
seek judicial review of a determination made under Article 
61.08(b)(2) may file a petition for review in district court in the 
county in which the person resides.
(b) On the filing of a petition for review under Subsection 
(a), the district court shall conduct an in camera review of the 
criminal information that is the subject of the determination to 
determine if:
(1) reasonable suspicion exists to believe that the 
information is accurate; and
(2) the information complies with the submission criteria 
under Article 61.02(c).
(c) If, after conducting an in camera review of criminal 
information under Subsection (b), the court finds that reasonable 
suspicion does not exist to believe that the information is 
accurate or that the information does not comply with the 
submission criteria, the court shall:
(1) order the law enforcement agency that collected the 
information to destroy all records containing the information; and
(2) notify the department of the court's determination and 
the destruction of the records.
(d) A petitioner may appeal a final judgment of a district 
court conducting an in camera review under this article.
(e) Information that is the subject of an in camera review 
under this article is confidential and may not be disclosed.

Added by Acts 1999, 76th Leg., ch. 1154, Sec. 7, eff. Sept. 1, 1999. 

2.12 LEARNING OBJECTIVE: The student will be able to identify the legal requirements for collecting and maintaining criminal records relating to a juvenile involved in illegal gang activities in accordance with Article 61.10 Code of Criminal Procedure (CCP).

Art. 61.10. TEXAS VIOLENT GANG TASK FORCE. (a) In this 
article, "task force" means the Texas Violent Gang Task Force.
(b) The purpose of the task force is to form a strategic 
partnership between state, federal, and local law enforcement 
agencies to better enable law enforcement and correctional agencies 
to take a proactive stance towards tracking gang activity and the 
growth and spread of gangs statewide.
(c) The task force shall focus its efforts on: 
(1) developing a statewide networking system that will 
provide timely access to gang information;
(2) establishing communication between different law 
enforcement agencies, combining independent agency resources, and 
joining agencies together in a cooperative effort to focus on gang 
membership, gang activity, and gang migration trends; and
(3) forming a working group of law enforcement and 
correctional representatives from throughout the state to discuss 
specific cases and investigations involving gangs and other related 
gang activities.
(d) The task force may take any other actions as necessary 
to accomplish the purposes of this article.
(e) The Department of Public Safety shall support the task 
force to assist in coordinating statewide anti-gang initiatives.
(f) The task force shall consist of: 
(1) a representative of the Department of Public Safety 
designated by the director of that agency;
(2) a representative of the Texas Department of Criminal 
Justice designated by the executive director of that agency;
(3) a representative of the Texas Youth Commission 
designated by the executive director of that agency;
(4) a representative of the Texas Juvenile Probation 
Commission designated by the executive director of that agency;
(5) a representative of the Criminal Justice Policy Council 
designated by the executive director of that agency;
(6) a representative of the office of the attorney general 
designated by the attorney general; and
(7) three local law enforcement or adult or juvenile 
community supervision personnel and a prosecuting attorney 
designated by the governor.

Added by Acts 1999, 76th Leg., ch. 492, Sec. 1, eff. June 18, 1999. 
Renumbered from Vernon's Ann. C.C.P. art. 61.07 by Acts 2001, 77th 
Leg., ch. 1420, Sec. 21.001(14), eff. Sept. 1, 2001.


Art. 61.11. GANG RESOURCE SYSTEM. (a) The office of the 
attorney general shall establish an electronic gang resource system 
to provide criminal justice agencies and juvenile justice agencies 
with information about criminal street gangs in the state. The 
system may include the following information with regard to any 
gang:
(1) gang name; 
(2) gang identifiers, such as colors used, tattoos, and 
clothing preferences;
(3) criminal activities; 
(4) migration trends; 
(5) recruitment activities; and 
(6) a local law enforcement contact. 
(b) Upon request by the office of the attorney general, 
criminal justice agencies and juvenile justice agencies shall make 
a reasonable attempt to provide gang information to the office of 
the attorney general for the purpose of maintaining an updated, 
comprehensive gang resource system.
(c) The office of the attorney general shall cooperate with 
criminal justice agencies and juvenile justice agencies in 
collecting and maintaining the accuracy of the information included 
in the gang resource system.
(d) Information relating to the identity of a specific 
offender or alleged offender may not be maintained in the gang 
resource system.
(e) Information in the gang resource system may be used in 
investigating gang-related crimes but may be included in affidavits 
or subpoenas or used in connection with any other legal or judicial 
proceeding only if the information from the system is corroborated 
by information not provided or maintained in the system.
(f) Access to the gang resource system shall be limited to 
criminal justice agency personnel and juvenile justice agency 
personnel.
(g) Information in the gang resource system shall be 
accessible by: 
(1) municipality or county; and 
(2) gang name. 
(h) The office of the attorney general may coordinate with 
the Texas Department of Criminal Justice to include information in 
the gang resource system regarding groups which have been 
identified by the Security Threat Group Management Office of the 
Texas Department of Criminal Justice.

Added by Acts 1999, 76th Leg., ch. 491, Sec. 1, eff. Aug. 30, 1999. 
Renumbered from Vernon's Ann. C.C.P. art. 61.08 by Acts 2001, 77th 
Leg., ch. 1420, Sec. 21.001(15), eff. Sept. 1, 2001.
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